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The property was listed on the City of Toronto's Inventory of Heritage Properties (now
the Heritage Register) on June 20, 1973, and is located within the proposed West
Queen West Heritage Conservation District. The property is part of a collection of
former institutional buildings within the West Queen West area, including the former
Queen and Lisgar Library (1115 Queen Street West, designated Part IV in 2012) on the
opposite side of Lisgar Street that has been adaptively reused as the Theatre Centre.

Statement of Cultural Heritage Value

Postal Station 'C" is valued for its design and physical value as an early example of the
stripped Beaux-Arts style applied to federal buildings at the beginning of the 20th
century. The two-storey square form and massing with rear loading area, brick cladding
with stone detailing, and flanking entrances are characteristic of post offices
contemporary to this era. The Beaux-Aris influences can be seen in the flat roofline,
symmetrical composition of the four elevations, the double height pilasters, the metal
cornice, rusticated stone base and stringcourses that wrap the entirety of the building,
and the round arched openings on the ground floor and flat-headed openings on the
upper floor.

The property at 1117 Queen Street West has additional associative value for its
contribution to the understanding of the historical development and evolution of the
West Queen West neighbourhood, with Queen Street West serving as the dividing line
between the Park Lots and the Military Reserve that were established in 1793. The
large lots on the south side of the street that were gradually parceled out from the
Military Reserve lands for institutional use to support the growing City contrast with the
ad hoc subdivision and narrower lots on the north side of the street.

The property at 1117 Queen Street West is further valued for its association with the
architecture branch of the Department of Public Works of Canada, which was formed in
1871 and contributed significantly to establishing a cohesive-and recognizable image for
federal buildings across the nation. Under the tenure of Chief Architect David Ewart
from 1897-1914, the Department of Public Works designed and constructed hundreds
of federal buildings across Canada, including over 180 post offices. Postal Station 'C'
introduced the modest and stripped down aesthetic that reflected the emphasis on
rational and prudent use of public funds, whilst maintaining an appropriate appearance
of civic grandeur. The Department of Public Works replicated these ideas in other
projects constructed across the country.

Located on the south side of Queen Street West, the red brick and stone building at
1117 Queen Street West has contextual value for its contribution to the historical
character of the West Queen West area, which is typified by narrow lots with
commercial buildings on the north side of the street, and large lots originally held for
institutional use on the south side of the street (the former Military Reserve lands). Like
several other buildings on the south side of Queen Street West, all four elevations are
visible from the public realm. This section of Queen Street West is part of the proposed

West Queen West Heritage Conservation District.
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The contextual value of Postal Station 'C' is also demonstrated by its historical and
visual links to its surroundings on Queen Street West, where it contributes to an
important collection of institutional buildings along this section of the street, including the
neighbouring Queen and Lisgar Library (1115 Queen Street West), the Dovercourt
YMCA (1089 Queen Street West), and the extant walls of the former Provincial Lunatic
Asylum. These properties are connected through their creation in 1888 when the east
and west portions of the Asylum grounds were subdivided and subsequently sold.
Postal Station 'C' is considered a local landmark.

Heritage Attributes

Design and Physical Value

The following heritage attributes contribute to the value of the property at 1117 Queen
Street West as an early example of stripped Beaux-Aris principles applied to a federal
building:
e The sethack, placement, and orientation of the building on the south side of
Queen Street West between Abell and Lisgar streets
» The scale, form and massing of the building that rises two stories above the
rusticated stone base, including the projecting corner bays with their double
height brick piers
» The materials including the red brick cladding and the brick and stone detailing
The flat roofling, brick parapet and the metal cornice
e The round arched openings on the ground floor and the flat arched openings on
the second floor on all four elevations
* Rusticated stone stringcourses accenting the level of the springline on the
ground floor openings and the sill level for the second floor windows, on all four
elevations
» The symmetrical organization of the building's four elevations
» On the north elevation, the two 'flanking entrances raised above grade and
accessed by wide stairways and landings
* On the south elevation, the two symmetrically arranged brick chimneys next to
the projecting corner bays '

Historical and Associative Value
Attributes that contribute to the value of the property as connecting to the building
program of the Department of Public Works of Canada:

» On the north elevation, the two flanking entrances (one for public access-and one
for private access) and the upwardly projecting stone nameplate inscribed with
"Postal Station C"

o. The use of the stripped Beaux-Arts style that reflected the emphasis on the
prudent use of public funds, whilst maintaining an appropriate appearance of
civic grandeur on all four elevations '






